HISTORICAI. DATA

A, History of the Site

Sometime before 1688, Colonel tieter Schuyler, first Mayor of
Albany, acquired from the Indions most of what we know as the Town
of Red Hook, and in that year, the Coloninl Governor confirmed
"Schuyler's Patent" and his owncrchip of the land. Schuyler did not
live here himself and there was little settlement or clearing of the
land by the Dutch, Eknglish or French Hugenots of Ulstcer County. By
1725, Schuyler's Tract was owned jointly by Col. Henry Beekman, Jr.
(the son of the faunder of Rhinebeck), Barent vun Benthuysen,

. Barent Staats and Nicholas Hoffman. Palatine Germon fomilies moving
down from last Camp (Germantown) had started to take leaseholds ana
develop an agriculturel economy.

The property in and around the Villagc of Red Hook was leosed
for several generations by Col. Henry Beckman and his heirs, 1t is
in the- 1750s that we find the surrounding properties, as well as the
Elmendorph land itself, leased by Col. Beekman. In 1757, Col, Beek-
man leased to David Feroe, 86 acres bordering on the Post Road and

the north side of the Road to Szlisbury (Conn,) Christian FFeroe has

i-o

his "bounds'" there in 1752 according to = neighboring farm map. In

1751, Beekman also leases to Christian Becker on the south side of
% Je

the "Road to Salisbury", and across tne Yost Road to the west, he

leased to Hendrick Moore in 1751, who had to pay the heirs of Beekman,

John .and Alida Armstrong, rent of 2% bushels of wheat every year.Lh
Leases were made for a2 term of years or for a life or lives and

were subject to renewal., The lcnsehelder kept the l:and os long as

he paid the rent and upon fzilure to 20¥, he might be cvicted. The
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lease system was abolished by law early in the 19th century.

B. Architectural Influences

According to Helen Wilkinson Reynolds in Dutch liouses in the

Hudson Volley Before 1776, unlike Albany or Ulster Counties, Dutchess

and Westchester County house construction reveéal 2 frce use of wood.
The method of construction followed in the e-rliest fromc housc wags
to make a literal framework of lath of the height desired ond a
depth of perhaps 12 or Lg", and to fill the intersticcs of thé frame
with the same mixture of mud or'clay, held togcther by chopped straw
or horsehair, that was put in the wall of stone house.

The gambrel roof was later thon the roof of single slant, but
it was found throughout & large territory. The gambrel was popular
in the Hudson Valley between azbout 1725 to 1775.

Red Hook was a neighborhood where 2 Germon majority and & Dutch
minority overlapped and interminglﬁg, &nd the houces that were built
rcflect this cultural interchange. o

C. An ¥legant House/liarly American Inn, 17269 - 1794

The location of the Elmendorgh property 2t the corncr of the
Albany Post Road (Kings Highway) and the road to Connccticut is
significant, This was the original "“corners" of the tiny hamlet once
known as '"Hardscrabble! and now known as the Village of ked Hook.

By the 1770s, "Upper'" Red Hook was the center of the community.
There was no church built in the area around the Elmendorph until
about 1800. Churches had been built near Tivoli and in Upper Red
Hook, '

In 1769 a road was laid out with six swinging gates from
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Christﬁg?er Snyders to the Kings Road, a distance of about four
miles, This connected with the road to S#lisbury (Conn.). A path- 7.
master was assigned to attend the road @#nd the Rhinebeck fTown records
(of which Red Hook was part of until 1812) tell us that in 1769, the
road ran from "Cristuffal Snidor to the Kings Road by Johannis Smith."
In 1770 the road again goes to Johannis Smith and in 1771, it goes

to the Kings Road by William:Clums, as it does in 1772. If indeed
Johannis Smith and William Clum were at the klmendorph, we cannot

say for qertain. However, maps m=de in the 1770s to 1785 reveal only

two houses in what we know as the northern part of the Village -- one

is the LElmendorph, and the other is on the west side of the Post :

3.
Road about one-fourth mile south, and ie the house of Viilliem S5iemon.

So it appears likely thét Johannis Smith and Williém Clum are at the
proper location. Johannis Smith is on the Rhinebeck Precinct Tax
List from 17261 to 1772. William Clum is on the Tax I.ist from 1766 to
1778.

In 1773 the road records tell us that thc road ran from Cristuffal
Snidors to George '"Sharph''. While the road records do not tell us
who is there in 1775 énd 1776, George Sharp is again nuamed in 1774,
1777 and 1778. George is the son of Jacob Sharp, a Po%g}ine leader
in the FEast Camp, or Germantown, as'it is known todny. ‘He is the
second child of Jacob, and although his family for the mcst part
remains in Germantown and settles it, George is found in the Rhinebeck
Tax Lists in 1768 until 1778. He was born April 24, 1748 &nu married
Rebecca Teator in 1771. This couple had eight chiidren. In 1775 and
1776, Sharp purch§ﬁ§? wheat and corn from Chanéollor Robert k.
Livingston's mill, He served as 2nd Lieutenant in Captain Hermon

Hoffman's Company, Colonel John Van Ness' Regimcnt, the Minute Men
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of Dutchess County (Oct. 17, 1775). He is also 2nd Lt. in Captain
Andries Heermance's Company and Colonel Moris Graham's Regimént of
Foot in the service of the United States, under command of Brigadier
General Clinton, Sept. 10, 1776. e

In 1779, the road records reveal that Philiy Jacobs is at the
site, Jacobs is on the Rhinebeck Precinct Tax List from Feb., 1762
to June 1768. Sharp is on the list from June 1768 to 1778, and then
Jacobs is back on the tax list. From 1739 until 1796, George Sharp
is back at the Elmcndorph.

Philip Jacobs is a wealthy merchant =znd important mun, for we
find three mapugfkers viho ‘say either "JrCOBY WRHIL - JACOBLY Sor
"pH{, JACOBS." However, while these mapjs indiceote only Tnverns, Churches,
Mills &nd occasionally 2 wealthy landholder by name, Philip Jacobs
1s never specifically shown as a tovern. Colles nlaces & sign next
to all of the taverns on his maps, but he lists JACOB without such
a‘code, 1t is significant that on Feb, 3, 1779, hi¥iy Jocobs

advertised in the New York Journal ond Cenerzl aAdvertiser that 'all

persons that have any demendc on the subscriber, by bond, note or
book debt, are desired to bring in their =sccounts by the first of
April. Likewise, they that zre indebted, cre desired to melee payment
by thot time, or they may expect to be sucd, zs I am going to
remove." (Rynebeck. Feb. €, 1779. Philip J-cobs). 1779 is the first
year thet we tind Jacobs at the =itc secoruing te the rosd records.
There ore many documents that show Jnccbs to have uétions
against people to recover moncy owe:d him between 1762 #nd 1783, in-
cilavaiilnig thie loiiiing for one-hqﬁg of 2 zloe,. tolecn by Gilbept Livingston
for Tory prisoners in 1777. fn 1769 Jacoks 1 a “believer who: was
christcned" at the Reformed Church of Germantown (Columbia County)

and during the years 1779 to 1782 we #ind that he snd his vifes
v i _




Anno Maria Sophia Weydman (Whiteman) =e sponsors at ceveral bagtisms
in the area,
We cannot find any dezds or lesses for #hilily Joecobs, but in

1783, he places an ad in thc New York Packet i which he describes

the house FOR SALE as "an KLEGEHT HOUSE either for ¢ store-keeger or
tavern on the public ro:d lesding to Albany, and on thc rond from
the Hine Partners ond a dircct rond to Gencral Tenbrook's, msbout two
miles from the Landing; with three commodious rooms below ctairs, a
large entry through the house, # large Room above steirs with =
large Garrett; the said houce hac got three Fire Places, i pood
kitchen, a good stable and barrack, a well of very good water in the
yard, with a2bout two acres &nd & hcolf of very good land joining the
said house, in exceeding good fence, with about seventy or eighty
very good Apple trees, the half_bearing_this yesr, and some very
good Plumb trees; about two acres bf good iand half & mile from the
house, which may be copverted into good meadow land. #Any gentleman
that may chose to purchase the same, may apply to the Subscriber,
living on “‘the premises, or to G, Martin living near the same, as. the
proprietor means to make the payment to the purchaser oc easj as
possible, Signed PHILIP JACOBS, Red-Hook, Rhinebeck precinct, July
21, 1783." '

This is a most important piece of historical evidence for it
tells us (1) that there was nc addition on the building in 1783 (2)
it describes the outbuildings and fruit trees. The three fireplaces
described would be in Rooms 102, 107 and 204, The third commodious
room below stairs must have been Room 108.

In l?@? we find that the road runs to ¥benezer Adams., Adams

was born in 1751 and died on Janusry 31, 1846 at thec age of 9.
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He married Elizabeth Martin and was an elder in the Reformed Church
of Upper Red Hook where there is o stoined glass window 1n his memory,
Army records show that he wes a Corporal in Ct. ana NY, but why he

appears to be at the Elmendorph for only on. year is & mystery to

us.
An Administration Bond postcd in 1788 mentions P’nilip Jacobs,
14,
of New York City, merchant ond the 1790 ccnsus shows @ Philip Jacobs

in the West Ward of Wew Yorl City with three females next to ilenry
¥hi btemsan, This may be our Jacobs, as it appears that his wife was
a Whiteman, A

Smith's iHistory of Rhinebeck, tells us that "J~cob Whiteman was
regarded as a great rebel by the Tories of the kevolution, ond with
Gottleb Martin, George Shory and others, held frequent prﬁ;yte
counsel to advance the cause of the Revolutionary army." Perhaps
some of these meetings were held at George Sharp's house, inasmuch
as his next neighbor to the north was Gottlob Martin. George Sharp's
daughter, Rebecce, married I[lenry VWhiteman of Rhinebeck.

In 1789, George Sharp is back at the building zccording to the
road records, Sharp may have becn o merchant just prior to this period,
for we find that in 1784 and 1785, he buys large amounts of wheat
and flour from Chancellor Robert R. Livingston (100 bushels of wheat,
224 bushel, 13 barrels of flour, 119 barrels of flour). Thesc were
paid for by cash, as we%l as "freight" and "trimming hoofing" and
U2l ropé for sanill."] fn 1782, George Shourp purchoced, in addition
to horﬁes and pistols, feoather beds, pewter plates and many household
items. the year 1782 also revezl: that Sharpg was the pgathmaster on
the Albany Kost Road from Red Hoole to Rhinebcck. According to the

1790 census, George Shary owns no slaves,
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A 1795 map of the eastern yar%%on of the Village ¢f Lled ilook
shows George Sharp at the location.L'The Suﬁgogatea Of fice shows
that George Sharp, INNKLPER, diad in 1796. ’%his is our first
indication that the kElmendorpn is being used as an Inn, wuvutchess
County has more¢ than 100,000 documents still to be researched ::nd
indexed, and we look forwsrd to the aay when we will learn vhen o
tavern was first licensed ot the site, as we understand that many
tavern licenses are included in thesc documents.

The road records do not tell us who wac there bctween 1797 -
1799, but a 1797 map shows that the groperty is LLM:HDORDI'S INN,

D. Community Center, 179¢ - 1854

“Capt" Cornelius C. Elmendorph wsz the first hotel keeper on

the Stissing corner in Pine Plains,  isfter fifteen jears, he snd

s
e

his family moved to Rhinebeck, It ic eigrificcnt that he moved in
1796, the same year that Gecorge Zhory died, for this wac the time
wvhen stages were moking daily EEi e be eyl

After the Revolutioneary ‘!or, the [ost Rota became = husy
thoroughtare, In 1785 thc legislioture passed an aet giving exclusive
richts to Isaac Van ¥Wyck of Kishkill, Telmage Hall of Albsny and
John Kelley of New York to carry on = stege route on the east side
of the lHudson River between liew 7York znd Llb:ny, 2t lecust once a
weelk, @ Prier to this tinc, nttcm,ﬁ: e R R S e O 0 o
by crude vehicles and also Conestoga wogons. In 1796 stages began
o daily trip, except for Sundays=. In 1797 Albeny stages lLeft New
York everyday at 10 in thc¢ morning ond srrived in Albany the fourth
doy at nine in the morning. By 1303, they were making iflbany in

2P
thrce doyse.

.

A tavern keeper licensed in Dutchess County nzd to pwoct 2 bond




of 50 pounds and agree that he "shall not during the time that he
shall keep a public tavern, keep o disorderly'tavcrn or permit
cock fighting, gaming or playing with cards or dice, or kecp-any
Billiard Table or other gaming Table, or Shuffle Board withih his
said Tavern %%.within zny Outhouse, yeard, or gardcn thercunto
belonging.t

Cornelius C, Elmendorph built the ked Hook Hotel in 1799
about one fourth mile south of the Llmendorph, and advertised it
for sale in that year.zgqhis building no longer exists.,

Our road records tell us that his brother, Jonn klmendorph
is at the EKlmendorph location from 1799 to 1803. John has alrcady
arrived there in 1796, for John klmendorph's Tavern is one of the
very few places mentioned as a place to go to pay duty for =
carriage or to get a license to sell wines and foreign distilled
spirits., The other places were in Amenis, Powling, Franklin,
Carmel (now Putnam County) and Poughkeepsic. =

According to the 1790 census, John ¥lmendorph owns no slaves,
although most of the other Elmendorghs have. several slsves., John
is a charter member of the%Red Hook 5ociety for the Apprehension
of illorse Thieves in 1796. e

It may be significant that both the 1795 map previously mentioned
and the 1797/98 map show the building as hoving two chimneys. This
may agaln indicate that no addition has becen put on the building
yet. It should be mentioned that ir 1979, an archaeologist found
a coin dated 1785 in the area of the wooden stceps that led to the

outdoors from the cellar before the south addition was put on. This,

of course, .would indicate that ther¢ was no south addition before
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1785.

In 1799 Cornelius C. :lmendorph advertised s two life leasc
of a farm containing 118 acres with a small house and orchard of
about 80 large grafted apple trees within a half mile of hié new
building (Red Hook Hotel), and John Elmendorph who lived ''near the
premises'" was the person named to inaquire nbou; pnrticulars.. At
the same time, he advertises TO LwTT for one year a hougg, garden
and lott in glowing terms which he recently moved from.a.de may be
referring to the Flmendorph, »nd, if he is, this would indicate that
a one year lease wns in «ficct,

Josiah Loop is on the Clermont (Columbia County) census in

1790. He is visted by Dr. Wilson at Clermont until 1795, but in

e
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1796, the doctor visits him in Red Hook. It is also in 179€ that
he married his second wife, Catherine Osterhoudt. Loop's daughter
Maria is married to Jacob S, Elmendorph, and Garetyia married
Jacob C., Elmendorph. The 1800 census shows Josiah Loup licted

next to Cornelius I. Elmenuorph. In 1804 the rood records show
that Josiah Loop is at the location and his will in 1807 shows him
to be an INNKELPER, In his will, he gives his son, John, thc house
clock.zgit should be mentiomd that Cornelius I. ilmendorph married
Catherine Loop (the widow) in 1816.

The road records revezl thet in 1807 %idow Loogz lives there
and Jacob Loop (son of Josizh) is the jathmaster. Loop's will had
mentioned that if the estate ic ot large cnough to pay éxgenses,
then the ixecutors are to sell tre whole of rezl eztate =5 necessary.
An 1811 legal notice mentions LOOP'S HOPE], is the plsce to pgo for
creditors to make claims zgainst zn insolvent debtor from the Town
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In 1812, Red Hook become & ceparcte township, ~nd the Red
Hook town fecords reveal that the road runs from Jacob Loops, In
1814, Jacob Loop and Catherine Looyp (vidow of Josish) Lodld
mortgage to David Van Ness.)l'

Early 19th centd???;éﬁéal that sthe budld diinpeana st erty swas
an important public meeting place. The f;gst Tovn of Realook mep,
dated 1815, shows LOOP'S INN very clecrly, and the first deed found
to the property is in 1819 to Jacq? Loo,. for $3,000 which describes
the property as having 12} acres.ﬁjfhis description continued until
1933 when the property was subdivided. On April 4, 1¢1%, the Annual
Town- Board Meeting is held at the homec of Jécob Loos,: Uhis s the
first of many Town Board Meetings to be held in the obuilding.

The first Agricultural Society mcntioned in Columbia County
records was the "Agricultural Association of Dutchess ana Columbia
Counties, of whichlgfyeral Jacob Rutsen Van Renssel=zer wos the
secretary in 1817. 1In that year, the asscclation held & fair and
cattle show 'at Loop's in Red Hook!' at which the premiume offeréd

amounted to $200, being in part as follows:

For the best five acres Winter Whest, to be horvested in 1818 = $25.

For the best acre of Potatoes, 1817 115,
For the best five ~acres of Indian corn *29s
For the best five acres of Barley 5204
For the best pair of pigs, four to nine mos. old 515,

According to Helen Wilkinson Reynolds, =bout 1790 to 1810
many'repairs were made to old houscs in butchezs County, in thec course
of which original woodwork was torn out, Adam mantles were put in,
ncw doors and shutters were installed., Im.rovement: verc made to old
houses after the war and new houscs built between 1300-1850 ottest

to the prosﬁerity of the farmers of Dutchess ~#t the time,
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In Fishkill (the southern end of tne county), zhe tell- us
that there is a house built moon =fter 1800 in which there :sre :
mantels and door casings elaborrtely corved, znd the trodition

thiere is that the carving vwas done by ¢ truveline carp cnter, who
S

charged o dollar a day end his bo:rd for the work,

Inasmuch as there iz so much activity in the czrly lyth century
at the site, 1t is possible that more room wmgfnoodcﬁ then, nu thet
the building was added onto in thi< jeriod.

In 1817 the road re¢cords coatinue to mention LOOP'S TAVixl, so
we know the use of the bui;ding un o toldbhat vodnt,  Jreob Loog died
ot the age of 33 in 1819.:ﬁ.

Our town records tecll us that in 1220 George Ring is ot the
location and town meetings continue to be held there. 1In 1520
George I. Ring and Margsret of Red Hook paid - mortgage to Zilleah

L5
Knox in the zmount of ﬁl,OOO.'ﬁ%he descristion of the groserty is
the same as for Jacob Loog. RING'S STOR: ic there in 1825. CGeorge
Ring must have been an unlucky storekeeyp2r, for in 1825, the Sheriff
sells the goods and property of George Ring »t public s»le for 3450
to Philip Boneésteel, a prominent merchont »nd _.ostmaster, who sold
it that same day to Peter de Reimer, De Heimcer sold it in 1627 to
Jacobus Eckert for #1500, Town éonrd meetings continuec ot the site.
In 1835 Jacobus iickert sold the sroperty to Devid uager, who apparently
had lived at the house for quite awhile before he took title to it.

The Independent Horse Thicves Socicty of the Lower Villagc was
formed at David Wager's housc on November 15, 1627 with Gottlop Martin
as Chairmanzand A.G. Benedict as Secretary (neighbors to the north

JOe

‘and east). -In 1828 David is the pathmaster on the ro:sd ctarting from

the house and going east, ind the road records tcll us thzst the road
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ran from David Wager's house even before he t00k title,

On October 28, 1810, David Vager married Catherine Vreeden-
burgh (or Fredenburg) and they had three children, Cotherine (1814),
Lewis (1820) and Barbara Caroline (1823).

The 1850 census shows that Wager is a FARMER, ond that there
arc two families residing in this house. 1In addition to iiager,
his wife and daughter Catherine Beam, there 1s also thg family of
John ana Caroline Butts (Wager's daughter) =nd four small children.

In 1845, Wager'gave land on the ecst end of the property to

7c
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the Methodist Episcopal Socicty for o cenetary.

I, -The Magtin Eamilby, 185k — 1955

David Wager dicd April'l, 1854 (age £7), but just before his
deati:, he sold the property on Mafgh 22 Lo fugnstus likrtin, Stote
Assemblyman and Town Supervisor., }Tge Martin family ovned the
property to the north, including a stone house built in 1776, and
kept their farm in the family for over 150 years. hugustus Maptin
was born December 13, 1808 and died January 14, 1875. il morried
in 1832 Lydia Marie.Benner and in 1873, linrgaret Renacr,

It seems unlikely that Martin lived &t the gyrogerty hlimsclf,
because an 1865 census showg him to be = lumber dealer living in
Barrytown, & hamlet in the Town of Red Hook zlong the river, He
was at that location with two Irish scrvantz - nd two dougntiers.

Martin may have converted the houce into « two [omily rentaol
property, because there cre othgr hous¢s erst of the lamendorph on
Cherry Street that were built about this time, ovwned by Hartin and
rented out, Tradition tells us that Hartin cienged thc roaf bine,
but thiz scems unlikely. It is felt by sone arenitectur. - consul tants

that the roof line was changed earlier in th:z ccentury.
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After Augustus Martin died in 1836, his heirs sold the
property to his brother, kEdward Martin for ¥4,000., Idwarad Martin
was born February 18, 1811, He went west =nd msde good as-a
surveyor in undeveloped country. He bought land neer Chicago
which the city later purchased for $1,000,000. He came back to
Red Hook and spent the rest of his life tending the family farm
and being the local philanthropist in a quiet wsy. He was very
benevolent to the churches, e

Burton Barker Coon, at zge 55 in 1924 wrote, 'obout the yeer
1890, Miss Susie Fulton taught = Kinaerg:rten class that was

supported by Edward Martin in the large double house at the upper

Ce

end of North Broadway."

The Red Hook Journal of April 29, 1887 tells us that "we learn

that Mr., Edward Martin of this village prcuoses to étart a kinder-
garten school in this village, Miss Emily M. Cce, of the American
Kindergartén Society, New York, will speak an the subject in the
Lutheran Chapel on Wed. evening next;"

May 6, 1887 -- "Through the generosity'of Mr. kdw, Martin, a
kindergarten school has been ogened in tnhis village, which promises
to be a success. School was orened on Wed, with 14 scholars. Miss
Emily M. Cole will leave Miss Hsrned, one of her teachers, in charge
of the school"

May 20, 1887 -- "Kindergarten school recently ctarted in this
village has been well patronized and, we lecrn, is #lréady fillea to
its-fullest capacity."

August 29, 1890 -- “Kindersarten will opren in village Soepte 1

under tuition of Miss Martha S. McCrzgen of Lswrence, Mass, "




December 12, 1890 --"The singing class recently organized
by Miss Estelle G, Platt, increased so rapidly that it became
necessary to secure a larger room for their accomodation, ~nd the
Lutheran chapel has been engaged. The class numbers about forty
members, At the last meeting a vote of thanks was extended to Mr,
kdw, Martin for free use of the Kindergarten rooms."

September 11, 1891 -z "We learn that Miss Susie Fulton of Milan
will open a select in the Martin building."

Edward Martin died on December %, 1893, and on February 2, 1894,
we read, "We learn the Kindergarten school has closed indefinitely.," =

Edmund Bassett began his Reminiscences of Red Hook in 1926 at
about the age of 61l. He wrote, "The old Inn, on the corner of
Broadway and Cherry Sts., has been changed to dwelling apartments.
In the early days of the Stagecoach line, this was one of the Inns
and a regular stop to change horses. The barn»stood north of the
Inn and was used by Philip Van Steenburgh, the teamster. He was
known as *Old Daddy' not in derision, but in affection, for he was
a kindly old soul." :

Philip Van Steenburgh did not live at the Elmendorpgh according
to the census, but he lived right around the corner on Cherry St
On the 1865 and 1875 census, he is shown as a teamster. He died in
1887 at age 76. '

The barn referred to is mentioned in the January 15, 13894 Red

Hook Journal. "The tearing down of the o0ld barn on the Martin

property at the corner of Main and Cherry Sts., removes an old land-
mark, but will improve the looks of the property.'" The late Sylvester
Pulver of ¥anbury, New Hampshire, who co-owned the building from

1933 to 1966, wrote a letter to his sister on August 24, 1975. In
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it he states, "I do know that the house was the Stage Coach Inn.

Ed Martin (nephéw of the previously mentioned kdward Martin), told
me that just a 1i£tle north from the house was a large barn where
they stabled and exchanged the Stage Coach horses. The next stop
going north was Blue Stores. The first stop going south was 2
Rhinebeck « « ¢« ¢« « Ed 2lso told me that when he first came east
from Chicago, that the first job that his old maid aunts gave him

to do, was to tear down the 0ld Stage Coach barn.," :

The late William Pulver, father of Sylvester, in an interview
in February, 1975, told us that the barn stood where the concrete
garage is now., A well for watering the horses was under the barn.
Pulver also told us that the Martins made it into a two apartment
dwelling, however, he seemed to indicate that this was done after
the Kindergarten. He also said that the Martins had the dormers
removed,

It is unclear then, when the house was converted to two family,
whether before or after the Kindergarten. However, it seems unlikely
that anyone rented the house while it was a Kindergarten,

A 1915 Village of Red Hook knumeration tells us that two families
are in the building. One is Lansing Jewell (54), painter; klizabeth
Jewell, his mother (82); Elsie Jewell (26) his daughter who was a
school teacher, and Llliott Jewell (17), nephew., rli Jewell, father
of Lansing, died April 7, i90?. He was a carriage painter, os was
Lansing's trade, and numerous pieces of correspondence ;elating to
Eli's occupation have been found in the attic of the building. Some
date to 1871, but most are dated 1896 and 1897. q%ﬁi was born in
Montgomery+{Orange County) and his obituary tells us tht he was a

resident in Red Hook for 33 years.




In 1875, he lived in a Frame House with a value of $600, so
it is unlikely that he was at the Llmendorph at that time. He
married klizabeth Schaife Betterton in 1853, ©She was born in England
and died in 1922 at age 88. This is important, because an undated
early 20th century photograph shows a very elderly ilizabeth Jewell
. sitting on the north porch of the front of the house, and the 47;
photo reveals a shutter, door knocker and a wooden porch floor. The
Jewells lived on the north side of the house. Lansing M. Jewell
died at his home in 1923 (age 63).

The family on the south side of the house was the Charles
Pulver family in 1915. The 1898 Village of Red Hook "Enumeration'
does not show Charles or William Pulver at all, nor does it mention
them in 1902. The aforementioned Jewells are listed a=z residents,
however, The 1915 Enumeration shows thkt Charles . Pulver (47) is
a janitor (he worked at the High School), his wife Susan (43), andr
son, Stanley (8). His other son, William (25) lived on Cherry St.
and is a chauffer for the Mortin family who owned the Elmendorph
property. '

A photograph taken early in fhe 20th century of Charles and
Susan Pulver, shows them standing in front of the east side of the
building by the cellar entrance. - Again, this photo is most nelpful
as it shows us the shutters, as well as the cellar entrance before
changes were made to it later. g

According to Sylvester Pulver, in & tape-recordedﬁintervieh on
October 7, 1975, he was the butler for lkdward Martin (nephew of the

19th century owner). The Martin family suffered financial losses in

1930, and .when the cattle were being auctioncd and the estate

properties were being sold, Edward Martin was moved to the klmendorph

where Sylvester took care of him. Llectricity was put in for him




at that time, as well as some of“"the plumbing., He died on February

17, 1932 with Sylvester in attendance. His bedroom was #204, =
According to an interview with the late Louisc¢ Pulver Smith

in 1975, sister of William Pulver, the tin roof was put on in the

mid 1920s by John Curtis, who owned the local hardware store.

F. Country Store, 1933 - 1966

In 1933, after the settling of the Martin estate, Willium
and his son Sylvester Pulver, became the owners of the house and
lot as we know it today.

A great many changes to the building occurred after this period
which can be documented., A new floor was laid on top of the old
flooring on the first floor in 1933, snd when some of this flooring
was removed in 1977, the 1933 newspapers werc revezled,

Photographs of the building in the 1930s show tall pine trees
on the west side by the road, &hese were probably taken down by '
the State when the direction of Route 9 was changed from the house
going north. William Pulver cut a door in the center of the west
exterior about 1943, and opened a small country grocery store and
Amoco gasoline station, ﬁe removed some of the well from Room ;108
and made a new wall for the back of Room 7111, for a bathroom which
he installed, Asphalt shingles were gut over the claopboard in the
1950s, and the cellar entrance wac changed. The stone steps were
curved to connect with a small shed lezding out of Room #110.52'

Evalena Pulver Hanlon (daughter of William) @nd her husband,
Charles, lived on the south side of the building; and they made many

changes to Rooms 109 and 110, VWallboard wrs inserted on the east

and south walls of Room /110, and the placzter ond lath wecre removed




in that area., A partition between Rooms 109 and 110 was opened up
from the ceiling to counter height. A4 Dutch door between Rooms 109
and 110 was removed, YWe cannot understond why o Dutch door was in
this location, but Louise Pulver Smith also told us of this Dutch
door.

Mrs, Hanlon also tells us the¢t there was & complete hallwey
leading from the south door on the west side back to the kitcnen
(Room #110). The Hanlons opened this up to counter height and
installed a door to a pantry under steirs (109A) thst had previously
been accessible through the north wall of Room 7111,

It is not clear when the "bar" or partition in Room #102 was
removed, but a photograph taken of the Pulvers about 1958 when they
celebrated their 49tk wedding anniversary, shows this partition,
but later photos reveal that it is gone. Two chestnut turnposts
from this partition remain in the building.

The Pulver family continued to live at the site until 1966
when Harold Miller, a real eétatc developer, purchased the building
with the intent of teoring it down for ~dditionel parking space for
the Grand Union Store next to the pyrogserty. I'ortun:tely, the Grand
Union Company decided to build a new store inbetwecn Rea liook and
Rhinebeck, and took title to the building when they moved out of
their Red Hook Store. fThe building was vacant aftcr 19C£, except
for summer rental as cn anticue shop. In 1974, it was Jut en the

real estate market for salec,

G. The Elmendorph Restoraticn p’roject

In A969, John V. Delafield heard ~bout the possibls destruction

of the tavern and asked Mr, Clifford M. Buck of Salt Point, H.Y. to

s




research the property. He mentioned in a letter to Mr. Buck on
November 18, 1969 that "Hudson Heritage, Inc. is cbout to acquire
the Tavern to protect it from destruction by the current owner, and
plans to use it for historic and other (I hope) voluable charitable
purposed,” A0

Hudson River Heritage was apparently formed to save thc
Elmendorph, but just what happened to them betwcen 1969 znd 1974
is. not clear,

About 1973 - 1974, some young men from the vicinity of
Rensselaer, came into the building and lived there for a few months,
even using the fireplaces. They tried to contact the Grand Union
Company about moving the building near Albany. They also removed
large amounts of plaster on the first floor, opened upy some of the
bricked-up chimneys, removed partitions on the second floor in an
attempt to ready the building for "moving." This attempgt was
aborted by the Grand Union Company and the prdperty wng then put
on the market for sale.

In 1974, Bruce Sherwood :and Richard Cloues of the Cornell
University College of Architecture, did a study of the function,
appearance and historical importance of the commercial areas of
the incorporated Village of Red Hook. Their study brought to public
attention the age of the Flmendorph and their recommendation that
it be carefully restored, made a new group of peogle take an interest.

The Friends of Elmendorph, Inc. incorporated in Llecember, 1975
to purchase and restore the-building. After a long public battle,
the building was purchésed by the Friends in Juhe, 1977 from the

Grand Union Company for $30,000 with a 328,000 low interest mortgage.

°

At once, the windows, which had been covered with plywood for

several years, were uncovered, About fifteen truck lozds of plaster

LD




and debris were removed from the éellar, as well as other zreas
of the building., This material was left from the young men who
were there in 1973/74, The collapsed garage on the northeast lawn
was removed and a dilapadated shed addition on the east side (north
end) was dismzntled. Ixtensive extermihation of the building for
termites took place in 1977. Some 1933 flooring was removed on
the first flooriin that yeaf, as. well,

In 1978, the Flmendorph was listed on the National Register
of Historic Places, and in 1981, stabilization began on the north
two-thirds of the building. New building sills were gut in place,
the foundation walls were rebuilt, cecllar walls were repointed
and new framing, necessary becsuse of rot, was installed on the
first floor where it was needed. Unfortunately, somc loss of mud
and straw insulation, as well ac plaster walls occurred, but the
building still retains much of this material on the interior wallé,'
as well as on the second . floor.

In 1979, the concratce pgorage was rchabilitatéd cnd maue into
an income producing Thrift Shop for the Friénds, known zs "“ilumendorph
Etc." The Friends of Ilmendorph, Inc. have more th:n 600 members,

and is entirely a volunteer-basecd organization,

od
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